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Request for Comments  
The California Energy Commission is developing a competitive grant solicitation 
targeted to qualified counties in California to provide funding for the development or 
revision of rules and policies that facilitate the development of eligible renewable energy 
resources, and their associated electric transmission facilities, and the processing of 
permits for eligible renewable energy resources.  This solicitation is being developed 
pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 25619.  As part of developing the grant 
solicitation, the Energy Commission is seeking input from stakeholders on aspects of 
the grant solicitation. The Energy Commission is especially interested in hearing from 
qualified counties.  
 
The Energy Commission requests that stakeholders review the attachment and provide 
answers to the questions listed at the end. Stakeholders are welcome to provide 
additional feedback concerning the development of the solicitation.  
 
Written Comments 
Comments should be submitted to the Dockets Unit by 5 p.m. on December 21, 2012.  
The Energy Commission encourages comments by e-mail.  Please include your name 
and any organization name.  Comments should be in a downloadable, searchable 
format such as Microsoft® Word (.doc) or Adobe® Acrobat® (.pdf).  Please include the 
docket number 12-GREP-1 and include Renewable Energy Planning Grants in the 
subject line.  Send comments to docket@energy.ca.gov and copy the technical lead 
staff at Eli.Harland@energy.ca.gov. 
 
If you prefer, you may send a paper copy of your comments to: 
 

California Energy Commission 
Dockets Office, MS-4 

Re:  Docket No. 12-GREP-1 
1516 Ninth Street 

Sacramento, CA  95814-5512 
 
 

Mail Lists: local-government, renewable, drecp, reti.    
 

 



 
 

Attachment: Renewable Energy Planning Grants 
 
As California’s primary energy policy and planning agency, the Energy Commission 
recognizes the importance of partnerships with local governments to achieve the State’s 
energy and conservation goals. The Energy Commission understands that local 
governments are experiencing pressure to process renewable energy development 
applications and face certain resource constraints. To assist local governments, the 
Energy Commission is implementing a grant program for qualified counties in the 
Mojave and Colorado deserts, and in the San Joaquin Valley. 
 
Background: Section 5 of Assembly Bill x1 13 (Perez, Chapter 10, Statutes of 2011) 
adds Section 25619 to the Public Resources Code and directs the Energy Commission 
to provide up to $7 million in renewable energy planning grants to qualified counties.  
Section 25619 (d) specifies that the Energy Commission can only implement Section 
25619 upon receiving an appropriation from the legislature from either the Renewable 
Resource Trust Fund (RRTF) or from the Energy Resources Programs Account 
(ERPA).  The appropriation was made from the RRTF in the 2012 Budget Act (AB 1464, 
Blumenfield, Chapter 21, Statutes of 2012). The Energy Commission has until the end 
of the 2012-2013 fiscal year (June 30, 2013) to encumber the funds appropriated in the 
Budget Act and has until June 30, 2015 to liquidate the funds. 
 
Goal: To make investments in the innovative development or revision of rules and 
policies, such as the development or revision of county planning and permitting 
processes, that facilitate the development of eligible renewable resources, and their 
associated electric transmission facilities, and the processing of permits for eligible 
renewable energy resources. Investments in developing or revising these rules and 
policies will contribute to meeting long-term energy and climate goals and provide local 
communities with resources to develop tools to accommodate renewable energy 
development. For counties in the Desert Renewable Energy Conservation Plan 
(DRECP) planning area or in the planning area of another natural community 
conservation plan, planning grants provide resources to counties for ensuring the 
protection of ecosystems through the successful implementation of the DRECP1 or 
other applicable natural community conservation plan.  
 

                                                 
1 California Executive Order S-14-08 requires the development of the DRECP, a multiagency 
conservation and planning document intended to guide solar and other renewable energy project siting in 
the Mojave and Colorado Deserts of California and provide for the conservation and management of 
certain species, habitats and natural communities that may be affected by those projects. The draft 
DRECP, when it is released in 2013, will be a detailed document that includes a draft natural community 
conservation plan under California’s Natural Community Conservation Planning Act, a draft habitat 
conservation plan under the federal Endangered Species Act, a draft land use plan amendment under the 
Federal Land Policy and Management Act, and a draft joint environmental impact report 
(EIR)/environmental impact statement (EIS) under the California Environmental Quality Act and the 
National Environmental Policy Act. 
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Qualified Counties: Section 25619(a) identifies 15 qualified counties for renewable 
energy planning grants. Qualified counties are:  Fresno, Imperial, Inyo, Kern, Kings,  
Los Angeles, Madera, Merced, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Joaquin, 
San Luis Obispo,2 Stanislaus, and Tulare.   
 
The Energy Commission is restricted from awarding grant funds to qualified counties 
within the DRECP planning area,3 unless a qualified county within the DRECP meets 
one of the following conditions:4 
 

Section 25619(b)(1) The county is a “plan participant,” as defined by paragraph 
(1) of subdivision (j) of Section 2805 of the Fish and Game Code, in the Desert 
Renewable Energy Conservation Plan.5  

 
Section 25619(b)(2) The county enters into a memorandum of understanding 
with the commission [Energy Commission] in which the county agrees to 
participate in the development of a natural community conservation plan for the 
purpose of ensuring that the natural community conservation plan can achieve 
the goals set forth in the planning agreement entered into pursuant to Section 
2810 of the Fish and Game Code, that is dated May 2010, for the preparation of 
a natural community conservation plan, in a manner that is consistent with the 
applicable policies of the county.   

 
Planning Project Eligibility: Qualified counties can propose planning projects for the 
“development or revision of rules and policies, including, but not limited to, general plan 
elements, zoning ordinances, and a natural community conservation plan as a plan 
participant, that facilitate the development of eligible renewable energy resources, and 
their associated electric transmission facilities, and the processing of permits for eligible 
renewable energy resources.”6 Section 25619(c) establishes the following two 
preferences that the Energy Commission must consider when making grant awards:  
                                                 
2 Assembly Bill 2161 (Achadjian, Chapter 250, Statutes of 2012) amends Section 25619(a) and adds the 
County of San Luis Obispo to the list of qualified counties.   
3 Counties that are within the DRECP planning area are:  Imperial, Inyo, Kern, Los Angeles, Riverside, 
San Bernardino, and San Diego. 
4 Assembly Bill 1255 (Perez, Chapter 601, Statutes of 2012) amended Section 25619(b) by adding  
subparagraphs (1) and (2), which describe conditions a qualified county within the DRECP plan area 
must meet before it may be granted an award from the Energy Commission. 
5 Section 2805(j)(1) of the Fish and Game Code states that prior to approval of a natural community 
conservation plan and execution of an implementation agreement, “plan participant” means a signatory to 
a natural community conservation plan’s planning agreement. No counties have signed the DRECP 
planning agreement at this time. 
6 Section 399.12(e) of the Public Utilities Code defines an “eligible renewable energy resource” as an 
electrical generating facility that meets the definition of a “renewable electrical generation facility” in 
Section 25741 of the Public Resources Code with some restrictions listed in 399.12(e)(1) and (2).  A 
renewable electrical generation facility must satisfy the criteria in Section 25741(a). To satisfy the 
definition of a “renewable electrical generation facility” under Section 25741, a facility must use biomass, 
solar thermal, photovoltaic, wind, geothermal, fuel cells using renewable fuels, small hydroelectric 
generation of 30 megawatts or less, digester gas, municipal solid waste conversion, landfill gas, ocean 
wave, ocean thermal, or tidal current, and any additions or enhancements to the facility using that 
technology. 
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• Preference for a grant to a qualified county in an amount that is adequate to 

develop a renewable energy element in its general plan that will facilitate the 
development and siting of eligible renewable energy resources that utilize 
multiple renewable energy technologies.  
 

• Preference for a grant for those counties that have experience in geothermal 
energy development and have adopted a geothermal element, as defined in 
Section 25133, to its general plan.7 

 
The Energy Commission’s competitive grant solicitation will require an applicant to 
submit a Scope of Work that describes how the project(s) will develop or revise rules 
and policies that facilitate the development of eligible renewable energy resources, and 
their associated electric transmission facilities, and the processing of permits for eligible 
renewable energy resources.  Possible projects may include, but are not limited to: the 
development of general plan elements, for example, general plan conservation or 
renewable energy elements; amendments to plan elements, for example, amending 
plan conservation or energy elements; land-use overlays/combining zones; zoning code 
amendments and/or updates; and, renewable energy ordinances. 
 
The Energy Commission will evaluate and score grant proposals submitted by qualified 
counties. The scoring and ranking of grant proposals will follow specific criteria that the 
Energy Commission will include in the grant solicitation.  The Energy Commission is 
especially interested in receiving grant applications that propose innovative policies and 
processes to develop or revise rules and policies that facilitate the development of 
eligible renewable resources, and their associated electric transmission facilities, and 
the processing of permits for eligible renewable energy resources, and thereby advance 
California’s renewable energy goals.  In the evaluation of grant applications, the Energy 
Commission may consider the resource need demonstrated by qualified counties.  
Additionally, the Energy Commission may consider scoring criteria for proposals that 
include leveraging new and existing resources and proposals that develop new or build 
upon existing partnerships.  
 
Timeframe: The Energy Commission tentatively plans to release the grant solicitation in 
the Winter/Spring of 2013 and announce awards in the Spring of 2013.  A county that is 
awarded grant funds will have until June 30, 2015, approximately two years, to 
complete the project(s) outlined in their Scope of Work.  
 
 

                                                 
7 Section 25133 of the Public Resources Code states that a "Geothermal element" means an element of a 
county general plan consisting of a statement of geothermal development policies, including a diagram or 
diagrams and text setting forth objectives, principles, standards, and plan proposals, including a 
discussion of environmental damages and identification of sensitive environmental areas, including 
unique wildlife habitat, scenic, residential, and recreational areas, adopted pursuant to Section 65303 of 
the Government Code. Of the 15 qualified counties, staff finds that Imperial County is the only county with 
a Geothermal Element that meets the definition of Section 25133. 
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Questions for Stakeholders: The Energy Commission is soliciting input from 
stakeholders to help inform the development of the grant solicitation that will implement 
Public Resources Code Section 25619.  The Energy Commission is especially 
interested in receiving input from the qualified counties.  Please respond to the following 
questions regarding the Energy Commissions renewable energy planning grant 
program. Stakeholders are also encouraged to submit responses that extend beyond 
the questions. 
 

1) What are the renewable energy and natural resource conservation planning 
needs and priorities in the qualified counties? 
 

2) What types of development or revision of rules and policies should be funded 
through this grant? 
 

3) What barriers to implementation of the rules and policies do counties face?  For 
example, resource, financial, and/or legal constraints. 

 
4) How will the development or revision of rules and policies described in answers 

questions 1 and 2 facilitate the development of eligible renewable energy 
resources, and their associated electric transmission facilities, and the 
processing of permits for eligible renewable energy resources? 
 

5) How much will the development or revision of rules and policies described in 
questions 1 and 2 cost and how long will it take to complete?  Can the 
development or revision of these rules and policies be completed in phases if 
funding for such work and time to expend such funds is limited and what would 
that phasing look like? 
 

6) How many renewable energy projects has your county permitted to date? What 
were the resource types, sizes, and scales of these projects, and how long were 
the permitting processes?  
 

7) Do counties plan to work on revisions to rules and policies with regional 
partners?  If so, what regional partners will you work with and what role will these 
partners play?  

 
8) What criteria should the Energy Commission use to score and rank grant 

applications? Please offer specific criteria and the rationale/basis for such 
criteria. 
 

9) Should the Energy Commission create two funds within this grant solicitation with 
one providing criteria and funding for counties in the DRECP and one providing 
criteria and funding outside of the DRECP?  If so, how should the criteria and 
funding amounts for DRECP and non-DRECP counties differ? Should the 
funding be allocated competitively?  
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10)   Public Resources Code Section 25619(b) allows the Energy Commission to    
allocate not more than 1 percent ($70,000) of the appropriated funds to provide      
training to county planning staff to facilitate the siting and permitting of eligible 
renewable energy resources.  What type of training will benefit county planning 
staff the most?  


